ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 21, 2012
8:02 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Senat or Joe Thomas, Co-Chair
Senator Bettye Davis, Vice Chair
Senator Hollis French

Senator Gary Stevens

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
PRESENTATI ON:  MAYOR S EDUCATI ON SUM T by MAYOR DAN SULLI VAN
- HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REQ STER
DAN SULLI VAN, Mayor
Muni ci pality of Anchorage
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Delivered a presentation on the Myor's
Education Summ t.
ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8. 02:37 AM
COCHAIR KEVIN MEYER called the Senate Education Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:02 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators French, Co-Chair Thomas, Davis, Stevens and

Co- Chair Meyer.

Presentati on: Mayor's Education Sunmm t

8:03: 04 AM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -1- March 21, 2012



CO- CHAIR MEYER introduced Mayor Dan Sullivan who would present
the Mayor's Education Summt. He expressed interest in
continuing to participate in the process.

8:04:18 AM

DAN SULLI VAN, Mayor, Muinicipality of Anchorage, explained that
the goal of the sunmt was to |ook at ways to inprove student
performance in the Anchorage school district. He relayed that he
becane interested in the issue the first year he served on the
assenbly and saw how nuch noney the nunicipality spent on
education. Wthin a decade the budget doubled to $800 mllion

but enrollnment and performance stayed about the same. The
guestion that nore and nore people started asking was how to get
better results for that anmount of noney. He acknow edged that
education was not generally the nmayor's main purview, but in the
| ast several years the mayors in nmany states have had it
elevated to the top of their list of priorities. He enphasized
that there were certainly pockets of excellence in the Anchorage
School District as well as throughout the state and country.
Everyone was |looking for ways to spread that excellence
consistently through all schools. One purpose of the sunmt was
to bring in experts to find out how to achieve a higher
st andar d.

MAYOR SULLIVAN |listed the cross section of 100 stakehol ders that
were invited to the summt including civic and comunity
| eaders, educators, policy mekers, business, and |abor. The two-
day sunmmt was convened and seven nationally recognized
authorities shared their expertise. The participants drew what
they could from the presentations and set goals to achieve
hi gher educational performance. Four conclusions were to: 1)
i ncrease student performance; 2) ensure every classroom has the
best teacher and every school the best principal; 3) offer nore
choices for students and parents; and 4) find a way to spur the
community to support the changes.

8:09: 08 AM

MAYOR SULLI VAN played a 10-m nute video that discussed the |ead-
up to the summt and the goal of finding a path to establish
Anchorage as a great international city characterized by a
superior education system

8:19:24 AM

MAYOR SULLIVAN said the first result of the summt was the
Anchorage School District decision to switch to the conmon core
st andar ds, which sets the bar rnmuch higher for student
performance. That is step one, because the higher the bar the

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 2- March 21, 2012



hi gher the students will achieve. He said the word "choice" was
mentioned during the video, and it was not about vouchers.
Throughout the summt the participants asked for nore choice in
vocati onal education. College isn't the right path for every
student, but every student needs the skills necessary to go to
col | ege.

He said that LIFO is one of the structural elenents being
elimnated in the effort to attain excellence in the classroom
That concept is that the last teacher hired is the first out
when there is a budget constraint. That is a barrier to keeping
young, bright, successful teachers.

One of the experts who spoke in the video tal ked about what
happened in Finland about 30 years ago. That country recognized
its people as the nost valuable resource and made a decision to
becone the best-educated people on earth. This was acconplished
by taking several neasures. First, no less than a nmaster teacher
is allowed in any classroom in Finland, and they are paid
accordingly. Another step elimnated about half the teaching
coll eges, which nade the degree nore rigorous. Education is
delivered hands-on; students |earn geonetry by building and
chem stry by cooking. He noted that Korea takes an entirely
di fferent approach and is al nost as successful. This illustrates
that there is no one answer to inproving standards, but the key
is to have naster teachers in the classroom and effective
| eaders.

MAYOR SULLIVAN said that Finland waited 10 years to evaluate
this new approach in the international testing arena. \Wen they
did participate, Finland scored 10 points higher than the next
cl osest country. For the past 20 years Finland has continued to
be nunber one in the world in education. The U S. was nunber one
30 years ago and is now 23rd in the industrialized world in
education. He said that was unacceptable and he was trying to
see if the Anchorage School District couldn't becone the shining
exanple of howto do it right.

8:26: 50 AM

MAYOR SULLI VAN said Phase 2 of the summt was a series of six
comunity discussions at various |ocations across Anchorage. The
public was asked to comment on the result of Phase 1 and to
present new ideas. He noted that the results of the survey that
participants conpleted were in the packets. Phase 3 of the

summit wll be in June. The 100 participants wll reconvene and
devel op an achievable action plan. This may require changes in
law and will require collaboration with teachers and unions to

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 3- March 21, 2012



ensure that everyone has the sanme goal of excellence. He said he
was conmitted to this inprovenent and he believed that all the
st akehol ders were as wel | .

CO CHAI R MEYER comented that there was a lot of interest in the
subject, in Anchorage in particular. He observed that Finland
enphasi zed vocational -technical education, and this conmttee
enphasi zed that this year as well.

8:30: 24 AM

SENATOR STEVENS cautioned that opinions vary with regard to who
was the best teacher. Students have different nentors and the
best is not always going to be one teacher out of one school.

MAYOR SULLIVAN said he agreed. The goal was to have every
teacher in every classroombe a great teacher.

8:31: 50 AM

CO- CHAIR THOVAS reviewed the work the commttee did this year to
i nprove teacher standards through the university system He
highlighted that the commttee |ooked at education as a
conti nuum He thanked Mayor Sullivan for elevating the issue,
and said he would watch with interest how the initiative noved
f orward.

MAYOR SULLI VAN said University of Alaska officials participated
in the summt and the president expressed concern about the
nunber of incomng students that need renediation. Myor
Sullivan expressed a desire for university officials to | ook at
how to enul ate the attributes of successful teaching coll eges.

CO CHAIR THOVAS asked if he anticipated using test scores to
eval uate success. He noted that the conmmttee was concerned that
the standards for the high school exit were reduced and that
testing didn't start early enough to identify issues.

8:36:41 AM

MAYOR SULLI VAN said the statistics were interesting. The U S.
ranks well through third grade and then declined to 23rd in the
wor | d.

COCHAIR MEYER confirnmed that university officials were
frustrated that so many students needed renedial instruction. He
noted that this commttee and President Ganble supported what
was initially the Governor's nerit scholarship. He noted that
Comm ssi oner Hanl ey chose not to adopt the common core standards
that Anchorage and nmany states adopted because he wanted to

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -4- March 21, 2012



develop a standard that was nore reflective of +the rura
culture. Wth regard to school choice, he said the issues like
transportation could probably be worked out.

MAYOR SULLI VAN commented that ABC schools were the norm 30 years
ago and the results show they were still successful. He
guestioned why that was now an exception school .

8:40: 23 AM
SENATOR DAVI S asked Mayor Sullivan to provide the nanmes of the
experts that participated in the summt. She said she

appreciated that he wanted to inprove education standards, but
her perspective was that as mayor his plate was already full
She al so pointed out that the school district had yet to vote on
adopting the comon core standards.

MAYOR SULLI VAN said he spoke to the board nenbers and under st ood
that they were going to adopt it.

SENATOR DAVI S expressed support for the commopn core standards.
Referring to the video, she stated that charter schools in
Al aska were not restricted. Anyone could establish a charter
school as long as it was done through the school district and
t he Board of Educati on.

MAYOR SULLI VAN said he would contact Dr. Patrick Wl f and ask
himto provide the research he used to determ ne that Al aska had
anong the nost restrictive charter school |aws. Referring to an
earlier comment about the nmayor's role, he opined that the nayor
in any city can play a role in setting the bar higher in
educati onal performance by bringing forward good statistics and
i nformati on so people can nmake good deci si ons.

8.45: 14 AM

SENATOR FRENCH t hanked Mayor Sullivan for holding the six public
nmeetings on education, and asked what he heard about early
chi | dhood devel opnment or early chil dhood educati on.

MAYOR SULLI VAN said considerable tinme was devoted to discussing
that issue. Finland does not have early schooling but the
evi dence shows that systens can be successful both wth and
w thout wearly schooling. Every jurisdiction has to establish
what works best, but every kindergarten teacher will agree that
a child who conmes to school wth basic skills will find it
easier to achieve higher results than a child that conmes in with
no preparation.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 5- March 21, 2012



SENATOR FRENCH hi ghlighted that Finland s state-supported system
provided quality, free daycare for working parents and after
graduation there was no college tuition.

MAYOR SULLI VAN said Finland nade a deliberate commtnent to be
t he best-educated people in the world. He said he didn't know if
Anchorage could adopt that nodel and achieve simlar results,
but it may be worth trying.

SENATOR FRENCH conmented on an article by Tom Friedman about
Taiwan's commtnent to education.

MAYOR SULLI VAN agreed that human resources were the greatest and
nost sustai ni ng.

8:50: 08 AM

SENATOR STEVENS said he appreciated the four points about
i mprovi ng education, but did not understand how "choice" fit in
wi th the others.

MAYOR SULLI VAN referenced the video and the comment by the head
of the Pacific Northern Acadenmy who asked why there weren't nore
school s i ke Chugach Optional School if 800 kids were waiting to
get into that school. He was pointing out that the demand
exceeded the supply for those existing successful prograns.
There were a lot of choices including vocational, optional, or
ABC schools, but there was also a long waiting list to get into
those prograns. The point was that there were clearly successful
progranms and there were not enough of them

COCHAIR THOVAS comented on the success of the Finland
experinment and his expectation that Fairbanks schools would keep
up wi th Anchorage school s.

MAYOR SULLIVAN reiterated that there was no one nodel, but that
there were elements in the top five or six fromwhich to draw.

CO CHAI R MEYER t hanked Mayor Sullivan and said he | ooked forward
to the June neeting.

8:56: 21 AM

Seeing no further business to cone before the commttee, Co-
Chair Meyer adjourned the Senate Education Standing Comrttee
neeting at 8:56 a.m

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 6- March 21, 2012



